Western Kentucky University

TopSCHOLAR®

Kentucky Library Research Collections Library Special Collections

2021

Potter Family Roots The Descendants of Thomas Potter

Kentucky Library Research Collections

Follow this and additional works at: https://digitalcommons.wku.edu/dIsc_kl_non_mat

b‘ Part of the Genealogy Commons

This Other is brought to you for free and open access by TopSCHOLAR®. It has been accepted for inclusion in
Kentucky Library Research Collections by an authorized administrator of TopSCHOLAR®. For more information,
please contact topscholar@wku.edu.


https://digitalcommons.wku.edu/

Potter Family Roots

The Descendants of
Thomas Potter
born 1746

Thomas Potter could not have known how his pioneering spirit would influence
the generations to come. His service in the Revolutionary War, farming know
how and migration to the unsettled state of Kentucky with his family established
a strong precedent for Potters to come. Hard work, perseverance, military
service and sense of community are traits that have been prevalent within the
Potter lineage.
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 Sent: Monday, June 7, 2021 6:45 PM
To: Richey, Nancy
Subject: Re: Book

** This message originated from outside-WKU. Always use caution following links. ** 7

Yes. That is fine. | am getting the consent forms returned in tornorrow's mail.

From: Richey, Nancy nancy.richey@wku.edu

Sent: Jun 2, 2021 1:.45 PM

Subject: Book

Dear Barbara,

| wanted to let you know that | receive your bock, Descendants of Thomas Potter...

Is it all right with you if | post at our online institutional repository? It will be SIm:lar to the link below when downioaded
Best wishes, g

Nancy Richey
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Kentucky Library Research Collections
Western Kentucky University

Kentucky Building

1906 College Heights Blvd., #11092
Bowling Green, KY 42101-1092
270-745-6092



Foreword

A great deal of the Potter family history has been researched extensively by members of
the Potter family. The historical records support the fact that Thomas Potter, born 1746 in
Henry County, Virginia is the known patriarch of the Potters outlined in this Potter Family
Roots historical biography. As researchers, we have yet to identify definitively the direct
ancestor of Thomas Potter. Some records indicate it is possible that his parents and older
siblings were English.

We do know that Thomas Potter fought in the Revolutionary War along with other Potter
family members and fellow Virginian, Jesse Kirby, born 1757 in Franklin County, Virginia.
The Potter and Kirby families are forever intertwined through friendship and marriage.

Thomas Potter and Jesse Kirby likely received bounty grant warrants for land in the newly
opened territory south of the Ohio River as compensation for loyal service in the war for
independence. Following the conflict, many Virginians - particularly those from the western
part of Virginia - sold their homes and land and eagerly set off to explore the vast Western
wilderness. It is possible that the male heads of household set off first and then returned to
collect their respective families. it is very likely that these courageous pioneers made the
trek by coming over Cumberland Mountain at the Virginia-Kentucky border. That journey
likely was made by members of the Potter, Kirby, Johnson and Tarrant families together and
came to an end in the region now known as Warren County, Kentucky. Due to the Kirby
family's connection to the Daniel Boone family, the Cumberland Gap makes sense. These
individuals and future generations of the Thomas Potter and Jesse Kirby families were
integral to the growth and success of the towns of Alvaton, Three Springs and Bowling
Green where they became the area's largest landowners and critical business operators.
Today, there are still Potter and Kirby descendants living in and around Bowling Green.

The historical reflection follows the line of Thomas Potter's son, William Potter and his wife,
Nancy Kirby. William established his homestead in the vicinity of Alvaton and Three
Springs, and we are fairly confident that his lands were located between Dye Ford Road
and Plano Road with the home likely situated on Larmon Mill Road. Upon his death, his
prosperous farm lands were sold and divided among the children. Many of them then
migrated to Missouri, settling in Dade, Cedar and Polk Counties, while others moved further
West to Paducah, McCracken County, Kentucky and South to Springtown, Parker County,
Texas. We also find some of William and Nancy's grandchildren residing in Sharon,
Weakley County, Tennessee and as far North as Shiawassee County, Michigan.
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Above and Right - Revolutionary War Memorial - Bowling Green,
Warren County, KY courthouse. Both Thomas Potter and Jesse Kirby
are listed. Thomas and Jesse pledged their allegiance in Henry
County, Virginia on Sept. 17, 1777. Source: Virginia Magazine of
History, Vol. 9, pg 139.

Previous page - Top Left - John Ewing Potter; Top Right - David
Potter, Adell (Laquire) Potter and Helen (Helmer) Potter; Next Row
Left - David Potter, Dennis Potter, Lorenzo "Dow" Potter and Julian
Potter; Next Row - Right - members of the Potter and Castle families;
Middle Left - James Reed Potter; Middle - John and Helen Potter;
Middle Right - David and Shirley Potter; Lower Left - Tamara Jo
Potter: Lower Left 2 - Robert Potter; Lower Second From Right -
Dennis Potter, Barbara Potter and Betty (Schreiber) Dean; Right
Group - Julian and Gladys Potter with Barbara Potter; Lower Right -
Amanda Jean Lamphere and Andrew David Lamphere

HUGH

JAMES HERDRICK RMES SR

SAMUEL
JAIES ll[‘{
|0SEPH TH=
y'i'[JIJlff - THOmA

RALPH

THOMAS POTTER
JOHA AUISENBLRR Y
0N RAGLND

CTHOMAS ROUNDTREE

WLLIAM SHERRY
SImpson
IAMES SKAGGS

LpfuLD Smir
{ JAMES :
)HUUHHIIH hJ:'i‘lE I

STEUENS

105ES SWEENEY
HOMAS HJH".T
ETER TARDIVEAU
TARRADT
LOR

f I wha

’,1:5:: ¥ WHALIM
nny i IGHE Y
{any ueLut

I!}r]‘-"urr wyArt

pH YOURG

David Kirby,
Elisha Estes,
Archibald Young,
Johu Kirby,

James Prunty,
Will™ Russell,

Joel Atkinson,
Joseph Cook,
Gideon Rucker,
W= Graves, Sen',
Tho' Prunty,
Philip Hutehinson,
Jolm Heard,
Amos Richardson, Jun',
Eusibius Hubbard,
Bottom Estes,
David Graves,
Allen Ridley Young,
Elisha Estes,
Joaeph Maybry,
Edgcomb Gwilliam,
Benjamin Cook, Jun',
John Richardson,
Luneeiord Hall,
David Pervit, Jun',
W= Choice,

Joel Estes,

Tho' Bolton,
Henry Haynes,
Raobt, Powel,

John Lane,

Nathan Barnet,
John Waoodall,
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HENRY COUNTY, VA,

Sept' 13th, 1777

180

A memorandum of the Inhabitants of Henry County of those
that hath taken the oath of allegiance,

FrED* Rives,

Jusse Kirby,

W= Hodges, Jun',
W= Vinson,

Rab' Bolton, Sen', (712)
Jumes Holton,
Tully Choice, Sen',
Tully Choice,
Lewis Morgan,
James Standefer,
John Grimmet,
Tarael Standefer,
Elections Hardain,
The* Potter,

Elisha Keen,

Jesse Hurd,
Nathan Swanson,
Juseph Kirby,
John Smith,

W= Law,

John Tarrance,
Jesse Law,

Lewis Hale,

Jesse Kirby,

Peter Craghead,
Jeremiah Strewsberry,
Henry Haynes, 5e',
John Swanson,
John Davls,

Elijah Perwit,

W* Estes,
Ambrose Holy,
Michael Dunn,
John Lane,

a0
23
3
17
42
71
24
50
62
53
a6
41
a
19
29
29
30
32
a3
35
20
30
a7
27
49
42
20
3
17
42
53

39
66

*These figures evidently show the nge of the person,



Thomas Potter

BIRTH - Thomas was born May 26,1746 in Henry County, VA. Proving his parentage is somewhat of
a mystery, although it is believed his parents were English.

MARRIAGE - Diana Alsop (the daughter of John Alsop) is likely Thomas' first wife. She was born
1745 in Goochland County, VA. Thomas and Diana were married July 31, 1763, in Goochland County,
VA. She may have died in 1769.

CHILDREN OF THOMAS AND DIANA (ALSOP) POTTER

John Potter born May 8, 1764 likely VA; died unknown

Lewis Potter born 1766 Pittsyivania County, VA, died 1845 in Warren County, KY; married Nancy
Hickerson August 15, 1786 in Franklin County, VA - 11 children; also married Mary Gadberry May 25,
1827 in Barren County, KY

Thomas Potter born 1767 likely VA; died unknown

Hugh Ryan Potter born January 15, 1769 Pittsylvania County, VA; died unknown

MARRIAGE - Thomas then appears to have married a Susannah, last name unknown. This is likely
the Susannah Potter who died August 9, 18086 in Warren County, KY and who may have been born in
1748. We do not believe this is Susannah Shockley whom a Thomas Potter married in 1801 in South
Carolina.

CHILDREN OF THOMAS AND SUSANNAH POTTER

Reuben Potter born 1770 Pittsylvania County, VA; may have died in 1832 or 1837 possibly in
Metamoros, Mexico as he was a merchant.

William Potter born October 29, 1772 Henry County, VA; died February 26, 1831 Warren County, KY;
married Nancy Kirby February 14, 1798 Bowling Green, Warren County, KY - 12 children

Benjamin Potter born 1773 likely VA; died unknown

Joshua Potter born 1776 Henry County, VA, died 1840 Chariton County, MO; married unknown
Morgan - 3 children; also married Martha Johnson - 8 children

Elisha Potter born 1778 Pittsylvania County, VA; died September 15, 1827 Crawford County, IN;
married Judah Dalton June 24, 1791 in Franklin County, VA - 4 children

Rachel Potter born 1780 VA, died 1852 Orange County, IN; married Joseph Weathers February 14,
1801 in Warren County, KY -~ 9 children

Betsey Potter born 1780 VA, died June 1821 Howard County, MO; married Jacob Harrington June
21, 1800 in Warren County, KY -~ 8 children

Nancy Potter born 1782 VA; died March 11, 1844 Warren County, KY

Frederick Potter born August 12, 1785 VA; died November 8, 1868 Warren County, KY; married
Elizabeth Kirby April 29, 1807 in Warren County, KY - 14 children

John Potter born 1787 VA, died unknown; married Polly McGee October 29, 1809 in Barren County,
KY



MARRIAGE - A Thomas Potter married Anne (possibly McGee) on September 25, 1808 in Barren
County, KY. She was born 17922 in KY and died October 22, 1826 in Warren County, KY. This is likely
the Ann referenced in Thomas' will.

MILITARY - Thomas Potter, age 31, gave his oath of allegiance in Henry County, VA on September
17, 1777. He was a private in Captain William Moseley's Company and later Captain Thomas
Moseley's Company of the 7th Virginia Continental Regiment, first commanded by Colonel Alexander
McClanachan and later by Colonel Daniel Morgan. They were part of General William Woodford's
division at Valley Forge, and Thomas fought under him at the Battle of Monmouth Court House. It
appears Thomas was on furlough during the Valley Forge time frame.

United States, Revolutionary War Rolls, 1775-1783 - Thomas Potter - Military Date: September
1777, Military Place: Virginia, State or Army Served: Virginia 7th Regiment

United States Revolutionary War Rolls, 1775-1783 - Thomas Potter - Military Date: 7 March 1778,
Military Place: Virginia, State or Army Served: 7th Virginia Regiment

There are also references that Thomas Potter enlisted and served in the Ware of 1812 even though
considered to be advanced in age.

The Migration to Kentucky

It appears the Potter family migrated to Kentucky circa 1788 as Thomas' last son is born in Virginia in
1787. His son Lewis, however, has a daughter born in Warren Co, KY in 1789. Because of their early
arrival to this area, the land and census records are difficuit to locate; however, here are some of the
earliest records.

1810 Warren County, KY Census
Thomas Potter - 1 male age 45+; 1 female age 45+

Warren County Land Records

100 acres Laurels Sinking Creek 1799

200 acres Bushy Forest Sinking Creek 1799
100 acres Lambs Sinking Creek 1817

150 acres (unknown} 1815

Sinking Creek and the branch off of Brushy Forest Sinking Creek are located near Smith's Grove,
Bowling Green and Alvaton (all within or adjacent to Warren County, KY).



